Public Document Pack

CASTLETON AREA FORUM
Tuesday 4 September 2018 at 7.00pm
Castleton Community Centre, Manchester Road,
Castleton, Rochdale

AGENDA
1.

Introductions and Apologies/Code of Conduct

2.

Minutes of last meeting/Matters arising/Updates

3.

Greater Manchester Police
including update from PACT meetings

4.

Wayne Whitlow, Community Connector (Adult Services)

5.

Open Forum

6.

Reports
 Castleton EC Residents
 Friends of Carnegie Castleton
 Friends of Castleton Station/ Support The Oldham, Rochdale and
Manchester Rail Lines
 St Gabriel’s
 Rochdale Township in Bloom

7.

Any Other Business

8.

Date and time of next meeting

Agenda Item 1
Rochdale Township Area Forums
Code of Conduct
It is established by and for the Rochdale Township Area Forums that the following
code of conduct will govern the behaviour of their members. The code of conduct will
be enforced by the Chair of this meeting.
Conduct at meetings
Members will at all times observe accepted practice while taking part in discussions
to:
• Be courteous to each other and support and assist other members in finding
the best possible solution to problems being discussed
• Allow each other the opportunity to speak and comment
• Attempt as far as possible to stick to the agenda and assist each other to
reach effective conclusions
• Operate within the constitution where applicable
• Aggression, violence, threats, harassment, intimidation and other disruptive
behaviour in the forum will not be tolerated
• The term ‘members’ applies to all those present at the meeting
Confidentiality
• Members will refrain from mentioning specific individual cases which may
cause embarrassment or identification of an individual
• Any information or item shared that is of a confidential nature will not be
disclosed to anyone else apart from members of the Forum in order to allow
the business of the meeting to proceed.
Dignity at meetings
• All those who attend Forum meetings have the right to be treated with dignity
and respect regardless of their race, colour, ethnic or national origin,
nationality, gender, marital status, age, sexuality, religion or any other matter
which causes people to be discriminated against
• The meeting will do all that is in its power to oppose all forms of harassment
and bullying
Individual Members
• Should disclose any personal interest that they consider may affect or
influence their approach to the matter being discussed
• Must show respect in all their dealings by observing reasonable standards
and courtesy, and by not seeking to take unfair advantage by virtue of their
position
Political Affiliation
• Even though individual members may be affiliated to/or be members of a
political party, they may not represent a political party in their role as
individual members of this Forum
• Elected Members attending meetings outside the ward they represent may be
allowed to speak, at the discretion of the Chair.
Breach of Code of Conduct
• If anyone attending the Forum meeting does not abide by the code of
conduct, the Chair will have the discretion to decide on an appropriate course
of action. The Chair may either issue a warning, ask the person to withdraw
from a particular agenda item or exclude that person from the meeting.
• Where a person is asked to leave a meeting, the Chair will have the discretion
to decide whether or not that person is welcome to attend future meetings.
• The Chair at his/her discretion, may close the meeting if he/she deems it
necessary

Page 2

Agenda Item 2
CASTLETON AREA FORUM
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
Tuesday 22 May 2018
Castleton Community Centre, Manchester Road,
Castleton, Rochdale
MINUTES

Present:
J. McHale, E. McHale, B. Partington, M. Darlington, T. Brogan, D. O’Gorman,
G. O’Gorman, A. Simpson, S. Sanderson, C. Mor, M. Cullen, M. Helliwell, R. Hughes, N. Hughes,
M. Magner, R. Jones, M. Ferrier, F. Ferrier, S. Whitworth, F. Cryer, A. Simpson and R. Smith
Councillors: J. Hornby, B. Sheerin and A. Rashid
Officers:
R. Hudson (Townships, Rochdale Council) and D. Lodwig (Environmental
Management, Rochdale Council)
Apologies: PC M. Farmer (GMP) and M. Webb

1.
INTRODUCTIONS & APOLOGIES/CODE OF CONDUCT
Introductions were made and all were welcomed to the meeting. The code of conduct was
circulated. All attendees were asked to abide by the code for the duration of the meeting.
2.
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR, VICE CHAIR AND SECRETARY
All in attendance at the forum were asked to put forward any nominees to give representation for the
roles. A copy of the constitution was both available and referred to; in order to outline that
membership of the forum shall be open to representatives of voluntary organisations or businesses
based in Castleton and individual residents of Castleton. As there was more than one nominee for
the post of Chair, both were asked to present their information and experiences, etc to the forum.
The group then cast their votes. Maggie Magner received 17 votes. Steve Sanderson received 7
votes. Maggie Magner was appointed as Chair. One person was put forward for the position of
Vice Chair, that being Sheila Whitworth. It was agreed that the Township Officer in attendance at
each forum will act as Secretary, taking the minutes.
3.
MINUTES OF LAST MEETING/MATTERS ARISING/UPDATES
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved.
Nixon Street junction and lights
A resident requested the Council’s Highways Department improve the phasing of the lights at the
junction of Nixon Street turning as traffic frequently miss the lights. Another resident raised the
matter of an obstruction causing an issue when exiting Partington Street. The matter was raised by
Councillor Hornby with the Highways Department and she is awaiting an update.
Chaucer Street blocked gullies
It was reported that three grids/gullies needed flushing/cleaning out as they were causing flooding
on Chaucer Street. The matter was escalated to the Council’s Highways Maintenance Department
requesting they contact the resident. The update received after the forum was they had cleaned the
gullies on Chaucer Street in December 2017 and they are clear and running. The request appears

Page 3

to refer to the gullies in the alley at the side of the property. This location is not public Highway and
they have been informed it is private. As such any drainage would be the responsibility of the land
owner and the Highways Maintenance Department are not able to clean these gullies.
Heywood Road street lights
Issue raised stating a conifer tree is hindering the illumination near to the children’s play
area/Sackville Street. The matter was escalated by D Lodwig, Public Realm Officer.
The site of the former Co-op
A matter was raised about the future planning proposals for this site. A request was made to
Councillor Hornby to call the planning application in so that Members can insist that hours of
construction/working can be specified and also that a S106 agreement can be factored in to ensure
the site will be tidied up, neighbouring property side elevations bricked up and the adjacent
pavement reinstated. Councillor Sheerin advised the meeting that the newly submitted planning
application will be being scrutinised. It was drawn to his attention to also request that the
owners/developers make the site safe.
Castleton Home for the elderly
A resident requested an update on this matter from the Council. Councillor Sheerin advised there
may be an interested party wishing to purchase these premises.
Manchester Road junction with Heywood Road
It was reported that cars are parking on double yellow lines after 5pm at this location. The matter
was escalated to the Council’s Parking Services to increase enforcement patrols in this area.
Cherrington House, Cherrington Drive
A resident raised concerns about the condition of the road near to Cherrington House on the bend
of the road. The matter was escalated to the Council’s Highways Maintenance Department
requesting they inspect the area. Update received was the condition of the road does not meet the
Council’s remit or criteria for requiring repairs. The resident was not happy with this response
and wishes for the matter to be raised again.
Chesham Park
A query was raised as to the future development plans for the park. Update received from the
Council’s Environmental Management Department: ‘in 2015 we got together with the local
community, did some consultations and worked hard on a project pulling funding in from various
sources to improve the play area. Any future improvements will depend on us getting a source of
funding such as S106 funding; if there is a housing development for example, or if Township wishes
to fund a specific extra improvement. If the community want to come together and form a Friends of
Chesham Park Group, we can support them to get it off the ground with a constitution and work with
them to obtain external grants that we can’t access as a statutory body’.
Stakehill Warehouse
A query was raised about the Council’s recent purchase of the warehouse on Stakehill Industrial
Estate to be rented out to acquire revenue. Question posed - what percentage of these profits
made would be ploughed back into the ward of Castleton? Update received from the Council is the
income generated from the Council’s property investments is not earmarked to the location of the
asset, but contributes to balancing the overall Council budget, which is utilised to fulfil the Council’s
statutory obligations and provide services for the benefit of the residents of Rochdale Borough as a
whole, of which Castleton ward forms a part.
Thornham Road/Thornham Lane
A resident expressed concerns about a fly tipping issue in this area. The matter was escalated by D
Lodwig, Public Realm Officer.

Page 4

Springfield Park
A query raised about the chained off children’s play area within Springfield Park – when will it be
fixed/re-open? The area is Brimrod not Castleton. The children’s play area was fixed a couple of
weeks before the date of the last forum and is open.
4.
GREATER MANCHESTER POLICE
An update was provided as follows:
Type of Crime

February 2018

March 2018

April 2018

Residential burglary

9

14

6

Commercial burglary

2

0

5

Theft from motor vehicle

10

8

6

Theft of motor vehicle

1

2

1

PACT meetings have started this month as a virtual meeting online. The first one started off with a
few teething problems at first but then went rather well. These virtual meetings will continue and
commence in other neighbourhood teams areas. The access to this meeting online will be sent out
a few days prior to the meeting on the Facebook page for both GMP Pennines and GMP Rochdale
by way of a link. The link will give residents access to the chat room where queries can be raised.
The PACT dates for the rest of the year are as follows:
5 June 2018
3 July 2018
28 August 2018
25 September 2018
23 October 2018
20 November 2018
18 December 2018
A male has been arrested this week for a series of burglaries and commercial burglaries around
Castleton, Bamford and Rochdale. He admitted to 8 residential burglaries and 13 commercial
burglaries. He has been charged and remanded.
PC Michelle Farmer (GMP) will be looking at doing some surgeries in Castleton in the next few
weeks which will be advertised online and also in the community centre and shops. It will be a drop
in surgery so all residents are welcome.
5.
OPEN FORUM
Partington Street – Unauthorised parking on double yellow lines
A resident raised again the matter of vehicles being parked on double yellow lines and asked if
Parking Services can up enforcement in the area.
Action: Request the Council’s Parking Services Department to up patrols in the area.
Tetrosyl – Planning Permission and approval from the HSE
A resident raised the issue that Tetrosyl have still not gained full approval in terms of the Health &
Safety Executive (HSE) nor the Council’s Planning Department. Councillor Sheerin advised
Tetrosyl are allowed to work up to a certain threshold limit before requiring certification from the
HSE, which is how they are operating. A request was made to chase up the Council’s Planning
Department for an update.
Action: Councillor Sheerin to speak to the Planning Officer to gain a further update.
GMP – PACT meetings changing to virtual online
Councillors and residents expressed their concerns with this move stating that they feel they are

Page 5

losing vital contact with the local community police in the village. Councillor Sheerin stated he was
really unhappy with the decision which has been taken with no community consultation.
Action: Contact GMP to advise concerns of the forum and Councillors.
Smalley Street – House cellars flooding due to lack of resurfacing works
Residents on Smalley Street (13 houses - numbers 43-67) advised they are experiencing flooding to
their cellars. The problem has been reported to United Utilities and after investigating the matter,
they were advised that it is due to defective surfacing outside their properties and the liability sits
with the Council’s Highways Department.
Action: Raise the matter with the Council’s Highways Department to inspect and assess the
situation.
Castleton Hotel – Allegation of unauthorised change of use to hostel
Residents requested clarification on the use of these premises as it was alleged families were being
housed in the premises.
Action: Escalate the matter for further investigation within the Council.
6.
REPORTS
Castleton EC Residents
A planning application for the extension to the warehouse at Cowm Top will go in front of Elected
Members next month. It is understood that they wish to pay specific attention to the visual impact of
the development and request a planting scheme requirement to be attached and maintained for a
period of 10 years after approval.
Friends of Carnegie Castleton
The building is still drying out. A sign placed in the window with Estate Agent’s details does not
mean it is for sale or let but is purely a contact for any enquiries regarding the use of the building.
The recent ‘May Pole’ event went really well with dancers from Castleton School of Dancing in
attendance.
Friends of Castleton Station/Support the Oldham, Rochdale & Manchester Rail Lines/East
Lancs Railway
Shelters at the station have recently disappeared and it has been advised that they will be replaced.
New timetable came into play on Sunday. Fiasco experienced across the UK regarding changes to
timetables with Northern Rail laying the blame on Network Rail and electrification. New information
boards containing the station’s history are being looked at. Appeal made to residents to contact the
Friends of group if they hold any artefacts of the station. Talks will be held in the local primary
schools on the danger of playing near railways in readiness for the school holidays. Sponsors are
being sought for the hanging baskets at the station.
St. Gabriel’s
The recent ‘Ceili’ night held was a success. The summer fair held at the partner church at St Johns,
Rochdale will be on 16 June 2018.
East Lancs Railway
Next meeting will be held on the second Tuesday of the month at the Woolworth’s Club, Castleton.
Rochdale Township in Bloom
Judging date will be 4 July 2018. Meeting for the full committee will be held Thursday 24 May 2018
at Castleton Community Centre at 6:30pm.
7.
ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Revive Magazine
A representative from the magazine ‘Revive’ attended the forum, advising residents to contact her
with anything that they may like featured within it. They cover the areas of both Castleton and
Norden and can advertise events or businesses which can feature in ‘Rochdale Life’ magazine too.

Page 6

Contact is either Caroline or Rebecca.
Floral tributes – Council’s Policy
A resident raised a query about the Council’s policy on the removal of floral tributes within the
Borough. It was advised that there was no ‘policy’ in place as the Council, along with any
partnership agencies involved, always sought to liaise closely with any families to ensure sensitive
attention is paid to their wishes before anything was removed.
Castleton Swimming Baths
Councillors urged residents to use the fantastic facility recently re-opened in the village.
Councillor Billy Sheerin - appointment of Deputy Mayor
Councillor Rashid advised the forum of the recent news of the appointment to Deputy Mayor of local
ward Councillor Billy Sheerin.
Clean up Castleton
A member of the newly formed group ‘Clean up Castleton’ attended and advised the forum of their
recent activities in the ward and their initiative to make Castleton a cleaner place to live and work.
Residents are welcome to join the group and attend to assist with future litter picks. More
information can be obtained by contacting Mike Cullen on 07938 642089 or
cleanupcastleton@outlook.com
Councillors’ Surgeries
Surgeries at 10.30am–11.30am at the following venues:
First Saturday in month – St Aiden’s Church Hall
Second Saturday in month – Castleton Community Centre
Third Saturday in month – Chesham Community Room
Fourth Saturday in month – Castleton Community Centre
8.
DATE & TIME OF NEXT MEETING
Tuesday 4 Sept 2018 at 7pm
Tuesday 4 December 2018 at 7pm

Page 7

